
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
August 12, 2021 

Table of Contents 
Agenda Page 1 
June 8, 2021 Meeting Minutes Page 3 
Finance Report Page 11 
President’s Report Page 19 
Item VIII.a.: Designation of Interim CEO/President Page 21 
Item VIII.b.: Proposed MHL Properties Builder Page 22 

  Price Increases 



Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda 

Thursday, August 12, 2021 

Noon Central time 

Note: This meeting will be held by videoconference due to the resurgence of COVID-19. To 
access and view the meeting online, please go to: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84192724925 

Or join by phone by calling: 

877-853-5247 or

888-788-0099

Meeting ID: 841 9272 4925 

The recording will be posted online after the meeting. Please contact 
info@houstonlandbank.org or call us at 281-655-4600 with any questions. 

Please contact info@houstonlandbank.org or call us at 281-655-4600 with any questions. 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call

II. Public Speakers

Speakers must be registered in advance by 5 p.m. on Wednesday, August 11, 2021. 
To register, please use the online form at www.houstonlandbank.org/resources, e-
mail info@houstonlandbank.org or call 281-655-4600. The Chair will call on 
speakers and allow three minutes per speaker.  

III. Consideration and Adoption of Meeting Minutes

a. June 10, 2021 Board Meeting

IV. Chairman’s Greeting: Matt Zeis

V. Committee Reports:

a. Executive Committee: Matt Zeis, Chair

b. Finance Committee: Laurie Vignaud, Chair

1. Monthly Financial Report

c. Partnership and Program Development: Courtney Johnson Rose, Chair

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 1of 23

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84192724925
mailto:info@houstonlandbank.org
mailto:info@houstonlandbank.org
http://www.houstonlandbank.org/resources
mailto:info@houstonlandbank.org


d. Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition: Victor Mondragón, Chair

1. Committee Recommendation Regarding Proposed Builder Contract
Amendments and Increased Home Prices

e. Procurement and Oversight: Jesus DeAnda, Chair

VI. President’s Report: Gonzalo Gonzalez, Interim CEO/President

VII. Mayor’s Office/Complete Communities Report: Ex Officio Director Christa Stoneham

VIII. Board Action Items

a. Consideration and Possible Action to Designate Chief Operating Officer
Gonzalo Gonzalez as Interim President and CEO with Corresponding
Signatory and Budgetary Authority

b. Consideration and Possible Action to Accept Real Estate Acquisition and
Disposition Committee Recommendation of MHL Properties, LLC Contract
Amendments for Maximum Sales Price Increase Requests on Three
Homes Under the HLB Traditional Homebuyer Program

IX. Executive Session

a. Discussion Regarding the Value or Transfer of Real Property

NOTE: The Houston Land Bank Board may go into executive session, if necessary, pursuant 
to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, for one or more of the following reasons: (1) 
consultation with its legal counsel to seek or receive legal advice or consultation regarding 
pending or contemplated litigation; (2) discussion about the value or transfer of real 
property; (3) discussion about a prospective gift or donation; (4) consideration of specific 
personnel matters; (5) discussion about security personnel or devices; or (6) discussion of 
certain economic development matters. The Board may announce that it will go into 
executive session on any item listed on this agenda if the subject matter is permitted for a 
closed session by provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  

Discussion may occur in executive session as provided by State law, but all Board actions 
will be taken in public. 

X. Action Items from Executive Session

XI. Board Member Comments

XII. Adjournment

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 2of 23



HOUSTON LAND BANK 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

HOUSTON, TEXAS 
 

June 10, 2021 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors ("Board") of the Houston Land Bank 
("HLB"), a Texas non-profit corporation created and organized by the City of Houston as a local 
government corporation pursuant to the Texas Transportation Code Annotated, Section 431.101, 
et seq., and the Texas Local Government Code Annotated, Section 394.001 et seq., was held by 
video conference due to the City of Houston Stay Home Work Safe Order, and Governor 
Abbott's Executive Order Regarding Public Meetings during the time of the COVID 19 
pandemic, in Houston, Texas, on Thursday, June 10, 2021 at 12:00 p.m.  Written notice of the 
regular meeting, which included the date, hour, place and agenda for the regular meeting, was 
posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

Board members in attendance were:  

David Collins Janae Ladet 
Laurie Vignaud Pastor Steve Hall 
John David Vasquez Tonzaino Bailey 
Matt Zeis Carol Galloway 
Jesus DeAnda Courtney Johnson Rose 
Antoinette Jackson Juan Cardoza-Oquendo 
Christa Stoneham  

Board member absent was:  Victor A. Mondragón.  Others in attendance included:  Anne 
Haynes, the CEO/President for the Houston Land Bank; Jennifer Allison, Vice President of 
Operations and Programs for HLB; David Benson, Director of Organizational Excellence for 
HLB; Ivan Zapata, Manager of Real Estate and Acquisitions for HLB; Mark Glanowski 
(Paralegal) of Winstead PC, outside legal counsel for the HLB; Gonzalo Gonzalez, Vice 
President of Finance and Accounting for HLB; Gracie Saenz, In-house counsel for HLB; Darice 
Harris, Vice President, Legal Counsel and Program Director for HLB; Elijah Williams of the 
HLB Advisory Board; Vincent Marquez of the HLB Advisory Board; Ron Butler, Manager–
Property Maintenance for HLB; and Jeri Brooks and Joshua Sanders of One World Strategy 
Group. 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Chairman Zeis called this regular meeting to order at 12:02 p.m.  A roll call of the Board 
members in attendance immediately followed.  Chairman Zeis announced that a quorum of the 
Board was present.   

4836-2434-4303v.1 43602-1 7/1/2021 HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 3of 23



2 

II. Public Speakers 

Chairman Zeis then requested Ms. Haynes to introduce any persons who registered to 
address the Board today.  Ms. Haynes announced that Pastor Kenneth Rose registered to attend 
today's meeting and reminded that each public speaker has three minutes to address the Board. 

Pastor Rose informed the Board that he is with the Mt. Vernon Baptist Church which has 
been in the Sunnyside area for over 100 years and is interested in purchasing two lots owned by 
HLB which the church has been maintaining since 2015 located at 8129 Livingstone and 3615 
Stassen Street.  The church will use these lots for parking purposes for its congregation.  Pastor 
Rose stated that the attorney for HLB indicated that the sale price for one lot is $28,000.00 and 
for the other lot is $46,000.00.  Pastor Rose requested consideration from the Board because the 
church has been maintaining these two lots for six years.   

Chairman Zeis noted that the church has filed liens on these lots for its maintenance costs 
therefore it would not be appropriate at this time to respond while there is a legal action being 
taken against HLB. 

III. Consideration and Adoption of Meeting Minutes 

a. May 13, 2021 Board Meeting 

Chairman Zeis noted that the minutes for the May 13, 2021 regular meeting of the Board 
of Directors were previously circulated for review and comment.  He asked if there were any 
comments for discussion to such minutes.  Hearing none he requested a motion to approve and 
adopt such minutes as written. 

Director Hall made a motion to adopt the minutes, as written, of the May 13, 2021 
regular Board of Directors meeting, which motion was then duly seconded by Director Vignaud.  
The minutes were then passed with the majority vote of the Board. 

Chairman Zeis abstained from voting on this matter because he did not attend the May 
meeting. 

IV. Chairman's Greeting:  Matt Zeis 

Chairman Zeis thanked the Board members in attendance for volunteering and being 
available for this meeting.  He informed the Board that the next Board meeting will take place in 
person at the Baker Ripley Center.  

V. Committee Reports: 

a. Executive Committee:  Matt Zeis, Chair 

Chairman Zeis announced that the Executive Committee met last week to discuss the 
recommendations of the READ Committee with regard to builder contracts, the budget for Fiscal 
Year 2022, and the pending legislation in Austin. 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 4of 23



3 

b. Finance Committee:  Laurie Vignaud, Chair 

Ms. Vignaud requested Mr. Gonzalez to report on the meeting of the Finance Committee 
held yesterday. 

1. Monthly Financial Report 

Mr. Gonzalez addressed the Board and stated that the Financial Committee meet 
yesterday to discuss the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget which is on today's Agenda for the Board's 
consideration.  He noted that the monthly financial position of the HLB is included in the 
meeting packet. 

c. Partnership and Program Development Committee:  Courtney Johnson 
Rose, Chair 

Director Johnson Rose announced that the Partnership and Program Development 
Committee met on May 26, 2021 and discussed program proposals for home builders and home 
buyers with regard to the cost of construction which will then be brought before the Board.  She 
mentioned that the Committee also discussed updating the Traditional Builder Program and pre-
qualifying the builders for approval. 

Director Johnson Rose noted that the Committee discussed the increase in building costs 
affecting the HLB home builders.  Lastly, she mentioned that the Committee discussed new 
developments for the Sunnyside neighborhood. 

d. Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition Committee:  Victor Mondragón, 
Chair 

Director Mondragón was not in attendance to provide the report for the READ 
Committee.  Ms. Haynes requested Ivan  Zapata to report on the recent activities of the READ 
Committee. 

Mr. Zapata stated that the READ Committee discussed the amendments to construction 
contracts requested by several builders, the lots under review for the Limited Alternative Land 
Use Program, and the Fiscal year 2022 Budget with regard to lot acquisitions in Settegast and 
other neighborhoods. 

e. Procurement and Oversight Committee:  Jesus DeAnda, Chair 

Director DeAnda stated that the Committee met on June 3, 2021 to discuss the 
Procurement Calendar, which has not yet been sent out, and development of a manual for staff to 
utilize for procurements. 

The Committee also discussed evaluating pre-development services with regard to 
qualifications for competency and construction inspectors based on competency and price.  He 
noted the Committee is working on a new builder RFQ to procure capable home builders for 
Fiscal Year 2022.  He noted that in the 2019 Builder RFQ, forty-six builders responded and 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 5of 23



4 

thirty-one were approved, and in the 2020 Builder RFQ, thirteen builders responded and six were 
approved by HLB. 

VI. President's Report:  Anne Gatling Haynes, CEO/President 

Ms. Haynes mentioned that HLB has been nominated for a national EPA grant for its 
Brownfields projects.  She noted that HLB is supporting the Housing and Community 
Development Department with its development of affordable housing in the Near Northside. 

Ms. Haynes stated that she was excited to participate in several national networks to 
discuss land banks and community developments. She then informed the Board that Anderson 
Stoute has left the Housing and Community Development Department and stated that she 
enjoyed working with him to produce affordable housing in the Complete Communities. Lastly, 
she stated that she continues to work on the neighborhood planning efforts for Settegast and with 
the taskforce for the Gulfton area.  

VII. Mayor's Office/Complete Communities Report:  Ex Officio Director Christa 
Stoneham 

Director Stoneham reported on the opening of innovation space in the Second Ward 
which is targeted to create 1,000 companies in five years.  The East End Maker HUB is located 
at 6501 Navigation Blvd. provides access to affordable work space for local manufacturers, 
fabricators, crafters and innovators.  She also informed the Board that she is working on an 
education initiative in the Third Ward with a corporate donor to create a feeder pattern system to 
impact education. 

VIII. Legislative Update:  Jeri Brooks and/or Joshua Sanders, Legislative Affairs 
Consultants 

Josh Sanders addressed the Board to present an update of the land bank legislation in 
Austin.  He stated that Senate Bill 1679 was passed by the Texas Senate and is now on the 
Governor's desk for signature.  However, he noted that the Governor included two amendments 
to the bill concerning how long a land bank can hold land, and with regard to property a land 
bank touches affecting city and state revenue caps. Lastly, he stated that a committee will be 
organized to study the Houston Land Bank to determine best practices.  

Director Johnson Rose recommended that the Board send thank you letters to all of the 
representatives who worked on this bill. 

IX. Board Action Items 

a. Presentation and Discussion Regarding Housing Affordability and Updated 
Program Guideline Requirements 

Ms. Haynes presented PowerPoint slides highlighting the maximum affordable home 
prices at varying income levels. 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 6of 23



5 

b. Presentation and Discussion Regarding Proposed HLB Programs for FY 
2022 

Ms. Haynes stated HLB is refining its program guidelines, including simplifying the 
Startup Builder Program and additional support for builders through better links with the 
LiftFund Ascent Program.  She noted that compliance and penalties are already included in the 
guidelines; however, HLB staff is working on better ways to enforce and monitor the 
construction of affordable houses as data collection from the builders continues to be a 
challenge. 

c. Consideration and Possible Action to Adopt Proposed FY 2022 Budget 

Mr. Gonzalez presented the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2022 via PowerPoint slides 
for the Board to view.  He noted that the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2022 includes 
significant expenses and revenues which were projected based on activities projected and 
controlled by the City of Houston.  Activity in the NHDP is subject to change; therefore the 
expenses and revenues in this program will be subject to change. 

Upon passage of the 2022 budget by the Board, the budget will then be submitted to the 
Housing Community and Development Department for approval as required by the agreement 
between HLB and the City regarding Operational Grant funding. 

Mr. Gonzalez stated that there are no new acquisitions under the Acquisition and 
Development Grant Agreement because all funds have been assigned at this point. 

The Fiscal Year Budget proposed for 2022 projects revenues at $5,792,697.00 and total 
expenditures at $5,776,914.00  The projected change in the fund balance is $15,784.00 

[Note:  Director Ledet left the meeting at 12:55 p.m. and Director Johnson Rose left the 
meeting at 12:57 p.m.] 

Director Vasquez made a motion to adopt the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget, which motion 
was duly seconded by Director Cardoza-Oquendo and passed with the unanimous vote of the 
Board. 

d. Consideration and Possible Action to Accept Real Estate Acquisition and 
Disposition Committee and Staff Recommendation of Burghli Investments, 
LLC Contract Amendments for Maximum Sales Price Increase Requests 
under the HLB Builder Traditional Program 

Mr. Zapata reported that this builder is requesting increases to the maximum sales prices 
on the seven lots located on Baywood.  The sales price increases requested are due to the 
increased costs for lumber and materials.  The builder furnished a letter from its supplier that the 
framing costs increased from $25,534 to $33,700 for each lot. 

Director Hall made a motion to accept the recommendations of amendments to the 
contracts with Burghli Investments, LLC, which motion was duly seconded by Director DeAnda 
and passed with the unanimous vote of the Board. 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 7of 23



6 

e. Consideration and Possible Action to Accept Real Estate Acquisition and 
Disposition Committee and Staff Recommendation of LIZ Enterprises 
Contract Amendments for Maximum Sales Price Increase, Lot Split, and 
Change of Plans and Specifications under the HLB Builder Traditional 
Program 

Ms. Harris reported that the proposed amendments include two sales price increases, 
permission to split the original lot into two lots to build two homes, and associated revisions to 
plans and specifications. 

LIZ Enterprises, an HLB approved builder (Builder), has one property, 0 Sunnyhill 
(HCAD #0361190070007, Lots 7 and 8 on Block 7), in its inventory that it purchased from HLB 
under contract HLB R312072020 – 14.  The Builder has submitted three contract amendments 
regarding planned construction on the lot which have been recommended by staff and the READ 
Committee for Board approval. The amendments include: 

• Maximum Sales Price to Homebuyer (total sales price increase was previously one home 
at $187,787; the proposed amendment would allow for construction of two homes at 
$210,000 each); 

• Permission to split the original Lot into two separate lots to build two homes instead of 
one (no replatting is anticipated as a result of the proposed action, which would enable 
the construction of two homes rather than one); and 

• Changed plans and specifications to suit the two smaller 2,750 square foot size lots 
instead of the original 5,500 square foot lot. 

The sales price increase was requested due to the current spike in lumber pricing and has 
been evidenced by the Builder's submittal of a lumber quote showing an increase in the 
construction pro forma's original estimated framing costs, from $25,245 to $39,066 for each 
home. 

Splitting the lot will allow HLB and its builder to take a more densified approach to home 
construction in the Acres Homes neighborhood.  As it stands, the parcel in question is already 
two lots under one HCAD and need only be split for HCAD purposes to become two separate 
lots with two separate HCAD numbers.  Splitting the lots will be accommodated with vertical 
construction; the proposal includes shifting from construction of one 1,364 square feet single-
story home to two two-story homes of 1,641 square feet each. 

Director Hall made a motion to accept the recommendations of amendments to the 
contracts with LIZ Enterprises, which motion was duly seconded by Director Cardoza-Oquendo 
and passed with the unanimous vote of the Board. 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 8of 23



7 

f. Consideration and Possible Action to Accept Real Estate and Development 
Committee and Staff Lot Selection Recommendation for the Sale of Property 
to Sunbeam Baptist Church Through the HLB Limited Alternative Land Use 
Program:  [Address – Neighborhood – HCAD # – Proposed Price – Builder 
Listed Below] 

1. 0 Shotwell – Trinity Gardens – 0660250080791 – $18,055 – Sunbeam 
Baptist Church 

Ms. Harris informed the Board that approval of this item will allow staff to negotiate and 
execute the sale of an HLB-owned property (10,200 square feet in the Trinity Gardens 
neighborhood) to Sunbeam Baptist Church for $18,055 under the HLB Limited Alternative Land 
Use Program. 

She noted that HLB staff recommends that Sunbeam Baptist Church be approved to 
purchase 10,200 square feet of property at 0 Shotwell (HCAD #0660250080791) under the 
auspices of the new program. 

Sunbeam Baptist Church meets the requirements for being deemed an eligible owner of 
"Adjacent Property" under the Limited Alternative Land Use ("LALU") program.  Per program 
criteria, an "Adjacent Property" is one that shares at least one common property boundary with 
the applicable HLB Lot (including, without limitation, a common corner point).  Also, this lot is 
not suitable for development of affordable housing due to its close proximity to the actual church 
property complex.  The church has maintained the lot for five consecutive years, meeting another 
requirement of the LALU program.  Church leadership indicates plans to use the property to 
expand needed parking for congregation members attending church services and community 
programs. 

Director Hall made a motion to accept the recommendation for the sale of this lot to 
Sunbeam Baptist Church, which motion was duly seconded by Director Bailey and passed with 
the unanimous vote of the Board. 

X. Executive Session 

a. Discussion Regarding the Value or Transfer of Real Property 

Nothing to report. 

XI. Action Items from Executive Session. 

Nothing to report. 

XII. Board Member Comments 

Director Cardoza-Oquendo thanked everyone who worked on preparing the Fiscal Year 
2022 Budget. 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 9of 23



8 

XIII. Adjournment 

Chairman Zeis asked if there were any additional matters to be considered by the Board.  
Hearing none, the regular Board meeting adjourned at 1:08 p.m. upon the motion of Director 
Hall, which was duly seconded by Director Bailey and passed with the unanimous vote of the 
Board. 

Minutes Prepared By: 
Mark Glanowski (Paralegal) of Winstead PC and 
Graciela Saenz of Law Offices of Graciela Saenz, PLLC 

Signed on the _____ day of __________, 2021. 

 
 
     
Secretary 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 10of 23



Houston Land Bank
Budget vs. Actuals: Fiscal Year 2021 BAB - FY21 P&L  Departments

July 2020 - June 2021

Accrual Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 08:37 AM GMT-05:00   1/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Income

Acquisition and Development Agreement

Acquisition Proceeds 7,450,256.86 4,401,204.96 3,049,051.90 169.28 %

Disposition of Lots 642,350.00 642,350.00

Disposition Proceeds 118,336.06 620,502.48 -502,166.42 19.07 %

Total Acquisition and Development Agreement 8,210,942.92 5,021,707.44 3,189,235.48 163.51 %

Administrative Fees 157,841.25 135,000.00 22,841.25 116.92 %

HLB Program Revenue

Disposition Proceeds 1,165,854.00 1,200,000.00 -34,146.00 97.15 %

Total HLB Program Revenue 1,165,854.00 1,200,000.00 -34,146.00 97.15 %

Operations Agreement 1,434,934.65 2,156,508.00 -721,573.35 66.54 %

Outside Sources Contributions 25,000.00 25,000.00

Total Income $10,994,572.82 $8,513,215.44 $2,481,357.38 129.15 %

GROSS PROFIT $10,994,572.82 $8,513,215.44 $2,481,357.38 129.15 %

Expenses

Acquisition Cost - NHDP 3,727,550.04 -3,727,550.04

Admin - Other

Advertising & Marketing 3,894.64 15,440.04 -11,545.40 25.22 %

Bank Service Charges 3,071.25 3,600.00 -528.75 85.31 %

Company Insurance

General Liability 17,877.78 19,413.96 -1,536.18 92.09 %

Officers & Directors Liability 7,145.16 3,443.76 3,701.40 207.48 %

Property Insurance 475.09 41,274.24 -40,799.15 1.15 %

Total Company Insurance 25,498.03 64,131.96 -38,633.93 39.76 %

Computer and Internet Expenses 2,387.91 7,079.28 -4,691.37 33.73 %

Conference & Meeting 625.00 540.00 85.00 115.74 %

Depreciation Expenses 2,401.08 28,662.12 -26,261.04 8.38 %

Dues and Subscription 14,187.60 15,660.00 -1,472.40 90.60 %

Filing Fees 353.16 1,532.76 -1,179.60 23.04 %

Office Expenses 1,313.97 5,409.36 -4,095.39 24.29 %

Leasing Office Equipment 3,705.75 2,816.52 889.23 131.57 %

Meals & Entertainment 689.91 1,481.64 -791.73 46.56 %

Office Supplies 3,133.03 1,905.48 1,227.55 164.42 %

Postage and Delivery 687.67 197.52 490.15 348.15 %

Printing and Reproduction 295.17 1,949.04 -1,653.87 15.14 %

Total Office Expenses 9,825.50 13,759.56 -3,934.06 71.41 %

Rental and Lease Expense 58,500.00 58,500.00 0.00 100.00 %

Software Usage 30,076.90 108,000.00 -77,923.10 27.85 %

Storage Rental 930.00 924.00 6.00 100.65 %

Telephone Expense 5,830.54 7,342.08 -1,511.54 79.41 %

Travel and Lodging Expenses

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 11of 23



Houston Land Bank
Budget vs. Actuals: Fiscal Year 2021 BAB - FY21 P&L  Departments

July 2020 - June 2021

Accrual Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 08:37 AM GMT-05:00   2/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Lodging Expense 1,800.00 -1,800.00

Mileage Expense 1,295.97 2,000.04 -704.07 64.80 %

Parking 72.64 596.40 -523.76 12.18 %

Travel Expense 1,500.00 -1,500.00

Total Travel and Lodging Expenses 1,368.61 5,896.44 -4,527.83 23.21 %

Total Admin - Other 158,950.22 331,068.24 -172,118.02 48.01 %

Employee Cost

Health Insurance 76,372.26 101,088.96 -24,716.70 75.55 %

Payroll Services Fee 1,789.39 2,685.48 -896.09 66.63 %

Payroll Taxes 58,179.10 168,028.68 -109,849.58 34.62 %

Retirement 17,651.47 17,651.47

Wages and Salary 775,995.44 978,532.68 -202,537.24 79.30 %

Total Employee Cost 929,987.66 1,250,335.80 -320,348.14 74.38 %

Legal Fees 154,888.00 69,000.00 85,888.00 224.48 %

Professional Services

Accounting Fee 96,420.00 107,060.04 -10,640.04 90.06 %

Audit Fees 15,000.00 19,425.00 -4,425.00 77.22 %

Consulting Fee 207,721.52 384,166.68 -176,445.16 54.07 %

Contract Work 110,000.04 -110,000.04

Total Professional Services 319,141.52 620,651.76 -301,510.24 51.42 %

Property Cost -  Maintenance 67,666.08 -67,666.08

Property Expenses

Clearing of Land Cost 375.00 375.00

Inspections 9,350.77 9,350.77

Special Lawn Mowing 1,700.00 1,700.00

Standard Lawn Mowing 412,549.05 583,315.08 -170,766.03 70.72 %

Total Property Expenses 423,974.82 583,315.08 -159,340.26 72.68 %

Total Property Cost -  Maintenance 423,974.82 650,981.16 -227,006.34 65.13 %

Property Cost - Disposition HLB

Closing Cost 108,449.03 66,000.00 42,449.03 164.32 %

Construction of House 39,219.98 39,219.98

Lots COGS 309,447.81 750,000.00 -440,552.19 41.26 %

Pesticide or Weed Treatment 136.44 -136.44

Property Taxes 44,895.98 44,895.98

Security and Surveilance Cost 5,119.57 5,119.57

Survey and Appraisal Expenses 8,769.50 8,769.50

Utilities and Drainage Expenses 320.14 320.14

Total Property Cost - Disposition HLB 516,222.01 816,136.44 -299,914.43 63.25 %

Property Cost -Disposition NHDP

Cleaning and Supplies 5,855.00 5,855.00

Clearing and Lawn Maintenance 650.00 650.00

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 12of 23



Houston Land Bank
Budget vs. Actuals: Fiscal Year 2021 BAB - FY21 P&L  Departments

July 2020 - June 2021

Accrual Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 08:37 AM GMT-05:00   3/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Clearing and Lawn Maintenance - NHDP 4,200.00 4,200.00

Closing Cost - NHDP 4.00 144,000.00 -143,996.00 0.00 %

Land Trust Fee 28,000.00 28,000.00

Legal Fees - NHDP 88,556.60 140,000.04 -51,443.44 63.25 %

Lots Sold - NHDP

Initial Cost of Lot 44,678.82 44,678.82

xImpairment on Lot Sold - (Contra) -36,248.35 -36,248.35

Total Lots Sold - NHDP 8,430.47 8,430.47

Marketing and Showcase 2,357.25 2,357.25

Pesticide or Weed Treatment 136.44 -136.44

Property Taxes - NHDP 4,057.31 1,288.08 2,769.23 314.99 %

Repair and Maintenance 19,293.08 55,999.80 -36,706.72 34.45 %

Security and Secure Property Co 1,582.83 56,595.96 -55,013.13 2.80 %

Soft Cost of Construction - NHDP 4,489.97 44,712.00 -40,222.03 10.04 %

Water and Utilities 5,137.23 19,760.04 -14,622.81 26.00 %

Total Property Cost -Disposition NHDP 172,613.74 462,492.36 -289,878.62 37.32 %

Total Expenses $2,675,777.97 $7,928,215.80 $ -5,252,437.83 33.75 %

NET OPERATING INCOME $8,318,794.85 $584,999.64 $7,733,795.21 1,422.02 %

Other Income

Interest Income 359.64 2,634.12 -2,274.48 13.65 %

Total Other Income $359.64 $2,634.12 $ -2,274.48 13.65 %

NET OTHER INCOME $359.64 $2,634.12 $ -2,274.48 13.65 %

NET INCOME $8,319,154.49 $587,633.76 $7,731,520.73 1,415.70 %

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 13of 23



Houston Land Bank
Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2021

Accrual Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 08:35 AM GMT-05:00   1/2

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

Chase-Operations - 8465 1,120,916.59

Money Market - Lot Acquisition - 7058 113,407.50

Money Market Unrestricted - 7066 2,037,456.15

MoneyMarket-Unrstr.C Resev 5577 18,025.04

Petty Cash 12.63

Total Bank Accounts $3,289,817.91

Accounts Receivable

Accts Receivable 420,308.21

Total Accounts Receivable $420,308.21

Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid Acquisition Costs 1,000.00

Prepaid Insurance 12,954.50

Prepaid Rent 4,875.00

Prepaid Subscription Services 46,515.50

Total Prepaid Expenses 65,345.00

Total Other Current Assets $65,345.00

Total Current Assets $3,775,471.12

Fixed Assets

Equipment 12,005.12

xAccum. Depreciation -5,126.96

Total Fixed Assets $6,878.16

Other Assets

Earnest Fee 125,100.00

Investments Held For Sale 9,053,575.14

Security Deposit 4,875.00

Total Other Assets $9,183,550.14

TOTAL ASSETS $12,965,899.42

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 14of 23



Houston Land Bank
Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2021

Accrual Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 08:35 AM GMT-05:00   2/2

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 117,654.37

Total Accounts Payable $117,654.37

Credit Cards

Chase Credit Card 6,302.54

Total Credit Cards $6,302.54

Other Current Liabilities

Due to Tax Assessor 7,515.06

Liabilities Due to HCDD 74,456.81

Liabilities Due to HLB 37,747.46

Option Fee 200.00

Payroll Liability 41,362.18

Total Other Current Liabilities $161,281.51

Total Current Liabilities $285,238.42

Total Liabilities $285,238.42

Equity

Retained Earnings-1 4,361,506.51

Net Income 8,319,154.49

Total Equity $12,680,661.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $12,965,899.42

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 15of 23



Houston Land Bank
Profit and Loss

July 2020 - June 2021

Accrual Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 08:36 AM GMT-05:00   1/3

TOTAL

Income

Acquisition and Development Agreement

Acquisition Proceeds 7,450,256.86

Disposition of Lots 642,350.00

Disposition Proceeds 118,336.06

Total Acquisition and Development Agreement 8,210,942.92

Administrative Fees 157,841.25

HLB Program Revenue

Disposition Proceeds 1,165,854.00

Total HLB Program Revenue 1,165,854.00

Operations Agreement 1,434,934.65

Outside Sources Contributions 25,000.00

Total Income $10,994,572.82

GROSS PROFIT $10,994,572.82

Expenses

Admin - Other

Advertising & Marketing 3,894.64

Bank Service Charges 3,071.25

Company Insurance

General Liability 17,877.78

Officers & Directors Liability 7,145.16

Property Insurance 475.09

Total Company Insurance 25,498.03

Computer and Internet Expenses 2,387.91

Conference & Meeting 625.00

Depreciation Expenses 2,401.08

Dues and Subscription 14,187.60

Filing Fees 353.16

Office Expenses 1,313.97

Leasing Office Equipment 3,705.75

Meals & Entertainment 689.91

Office Supplies 3,133.03

Postage and Delivery 687.67

Printing and Reproduction 295.17

Total Office Expenses 9,825.50

Rental and Lease Expense 58,500.00

Software Usage 30,076.90

Storage Rental 930.00

Telephone Expense 5,830.54

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 16of 23



Houston Land Bank
Profit and Loss

July 2020 - June 2021

Accrual Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 08:36 AM GMT-05:00   2/3

TOTAL

Travel and Lodging Expenses

Mileage Expense 1,295.97

Parking 72.64

Total Travel and Lodging Expenses 1,368.61

Total Admin - Other 158,950.22

Employee Cost

Health Insurance 76,372.26

Payroll Services Fee 1,789.39

Payroll Taxes 58,179.10

Retirement 17,651.47

Wages and Salary 775,995.44

Total Employee Cost 929,987.66

Legal Fees 154,888.00

Professional Services

Accounting Fee 96,420.00

Audit Fees 15,000.00

Consulting Fee 207,721.52

Total Professional Services 319,141.52

Property Cost -  Maintenance

Property Expenses

Clearing of Land Cost 375.00

Inspections 9,350.77

Special Lawn Mowing 1,700.00

Standard Lawn Mowing 412,549.05

Total Property Expenses 423,974.82

Total Property Cost -  Maintenance 423,974.82

Property Cost - Disposition HLB

Closing Cost 108,449.03

Construction of House 39,219.98

Lots COGS 309,447.81

Property Taxes 44,895.98

Security and Surveilance Cost 5,119.57

Survey and Appraisal Expenses 8,769.50

Utilities and Drainage Expenses 320.14

Total Property Cost - Disposition HLB 516,222.01

Property Cost -Disposition NHDP

Cleaning and Supplies 5,855.00

Clearing and Lawn Maintenance 650.00

Clearing and Lawn Maintenance - NHDP 4,200.00

Closing Cost - NHDP 4.00

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 17of 23



Houston Land Bank
Profit and Loss

July 2020 - June 2021

Accrual Basis  Friday, August 6, 2021 08:36 AM GMT-05:00   3/3

TOTAL

Land Trust Fee 28,000.00

Legal Fees - NHDP 88,556.60

Lots Sold - NHDP

Initial Cost of Lot 44,678.82

xImpairment on Lot Sold - (Contra) -36,248.35

Total Lots Sold - NHDP 8,430.47

Marketing and Showcase 2,357.25

Property Taxes - NHDP 4,057.31

Repair and Maintenance 19,293.08

Security and Secure Property Co 1,582.83

Soft Cost of Construction - NHDP 4,489.97

Water and Utilities 5,137.23

Total Property Cost -Disposition NHDP 172,613.74

Total Expenses $2,675,777.97

NET OPERATING INCOME $8,318,794.85

Other Income

Interest Income 359.64

Total Other Income $359.64

NET OTHER INCOME $359.64

NET INCOME $8,319,154.49

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 18of 23



PRESIDENT’S REPORT – AUGUST 2021 

This monthly President’s Report introduces a new format intended to provide brief 
summaries of status and progress on important HLB projects and initiatives. If you would 
like more information on any of these items, please email ggonzalez@houstonlandbank.org. 
Thank you, and we would appreciate any feedback you’d like to offer on the new approach. 

• Settegast Community Event Recap: Some 50 Settegast community members 
attended our recent community event with the project design team, APD Urban 
Planning and Management. The productive session focused on gathering community 
input regarding the Settegast area’s direction and development. This was the first of 
what is to be a series of community engagement events around our work in Settegast.

• Banking Land and Building Affordable Homes:

o Inventory Highlights

 482 Properties/HCAD Parcels

 243 Holding for Housing (includes single lot and large parcels)

o HLB Home Building Initiative Highlights (Traditional Program)

 21 homes sold in 2020

 32 homes sold in 2021 to date, 7 in July

 89 homes are under development

o New Home Development Program Highlights

 2 Houses in inventory—2 sold in July, 10 homes expected to arrive in 
inventory in August

 41 Houses SOLD since June 2019 (29 HCLT, 12 Standard Sales)

o Acquisitions

 No new acquisitions for the NHDP program are being pursued, as all 
available funds are allocated or committed. A portion of the Yellow Cab 
acquisition (3.2 acres in Near Northside) and a smaller neighborhood site 
at Harrisburg and Burr remain under contract.

• Annual Audit Underway: The annual audit has commenced for Fiscal Year 2021, which 
concluded June 30. Staff from our third-party external auditor (Doeren Mayhew) will 
be working onsite at HLB offices from time to time while the audit is completed; the 
final product is to be available no later than October 1. Updates will be shared with the

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 19of 23

mailto:ggonzalez@houstonlandbank.org


 

finance and executive committees, and final issued audit report will be shared with the 
Board of Directors. 

• AARP Grant: Working in partnership with Urban Harvest, we are developing work plans 
for improvements at the Harry Holmes Healthy Harvest Community Garden on an HLB 
lot in Sunnyside. Installation of lights, raised garden beds, and an accessible pathway 
will address community gardeners’ needs and better enable the space to be used for 
community events and educational workshops. The grant will also fund community 
engagement and outreach. No Board action is required, but we will keep you updated 
regarding grand opening events and opportunities to participate in the months ahead.  

• Builder RFQ Posting: After review by the Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition 
(READ) Committee and the Executive Committee, we are targeting the week of August 
9-13 to move forward with posting of a Request for Qualifications for builders. This 
follows on the last RFQ issuance in 2020 and is intended to expand our builder pool’s 
capacity to develop new affordable homes on HLB properties through our traditional 
program. The solicitation is to be posted on the HLB website through mid-September 
and will be advertised in the Houston Business Journal, the City of Houston Office of 
Business Opportunity weekly e-blast, and other methods. After review and evaluation of 
responses, we expect to bring new proposals for qualified builders to the READ 
Committee and board in late fall. 

• Procurement Calendar Update: Staff recently circulated a copy of a schedule 
showing key procurements for HLB. We are revisiting certain of these and will be 
updating the Procurements and Oversight Committee, as well as the Executive 
Committee; we plan to issue a revised schedule before the end of September. This will 
help to ensure sufficient staff capacity is available to move the builders’ RFQ forward 
smoothly and quickly.  

 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 20of 23



 

 

 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date: August 12, 2021 
 
Agenda Item VIII.a.: Consideration and Possible Action to Designate Chief Operating 
Officer Gonzalo Gonzalez as Interim President and CEO with Corresponding 
Signatory and Budgetary Authority   

  

ACTION SUMMARY 

Approval of this item will designate Chief Operating Officer Gonzalo Gonzalez as interim 
president and CEO of the Houston Land Bank and will delegate corresponding signatory 
and budgetary authority to the interim role while the Board conducts a search for a new 
president and CEO.     

BACKGROUND/OVERVIEW 

Following up on Anne Gatling Haynes’ resignation as HLB president and CEO effective July 
30, 2021, Board Chair Matt Zeis announced that Chief Operating Officer Gonzalo Gonzalez 
would serve as interim president and CEO. Via minute entry in the Board’s official minutes, 
this item provides for the Board to formally delegate interim authority as president and CEO 
to Mr. Gonzalez.  

Mr. Gonzalez is to be responsible for all duties and oversight associated with the president 
and CEO role and is to carry related budgetary and signatory authority for the organization 
until the Board identifies a new permanent president and CEO. This item further ratifies any 
actions or signatures taken by Mr. Gonzalez as interim president and CEO between July 30, 
2021 and the board meeting at which this item is considered. 

Mr. Gonzalez joined HLB in April 2020 as vice president of finance and accounting; he was 
promoted to chief operating officer in mid-2021. A 2013 graduate of the University of Texas 
at Brownsville with a BBA in accounting, Mr. Gonzalez has experience working in local and 
state government and in private sector mergers and acquisitions. 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 21of 23



 

 

 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date: August 12, 2021 
 
Agenda Item VIII.b.: Consideration and Possible Action to Accept Real Estate 
Acquisition and Disposition Committee Recommendation of MHL  Properties 
Contract Amendments for Maximum Sales Price Increase Requests on Three Homes 
Under the HLB Traditional Homebuyer Program   

  

ACTION SUMMARY 

Approval of this item will authorize contract amendments—recommended by the READ 
Committee—with HLB approved builder MHL Properties, LLC, enabling increases to the 
original contracted sales prices of three homes under construction.     

BACKGROUND/OVERVIEW 

MHL acquired three lots in Sunnyside (4350 Knoxville HCAD - 0761950040019, 4354 
Knoxville – HCAD 0761950040020, and 0 Brinkley HCAD - 0690150050031) from HLB in 
June 2020.  The builder is requesting increases to the sales prices as the result of 
unanticipated work required by the City of Houston, including installing over 150 linear feet 
of 8” water line under the right of way along with a fire hydrant and multiple street cuts, 
and the unanticipated market spike in lumber and construction materials.  While MHL 
Properties has demonstrated approximately $62,000 in additional hard costs across the 
three projects, the cumulative price increase requests only total approximately $47,000. 
This amount is spread across the three homes, not always in proportion to the 
demonstrated increased costs allocated to each home. Per a 2021 study commissioned by 
HLB, the proposed new sales prices still fall below the average price of a newly constructed 
home in the same area (approximately $217,000).  The READ Committee agreed to 
recommend these increases prior to the scheduled July 2021 Board of Directors meeting.   

Proposed Price Increase Information: 

- 4350 Knoxville 77051 (1,680 SF living space) 
o Original Sales Price: $208,850   
o Demonstrated Increased Costs of $25,885 
o Requested Sales Price $212,000 (increase of $3,150)  

 
• 4354 Knoxville 77051 (1,360 SF of living space) 

o Original Sales Price: $183,928 
o Demonstrated Increased Costs of $24,784 
o Requested Sales Price $203,68 (increase of $19,740) 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 22of 23



 

 
• 0 Brinkley (1360 SF of living space) 

o Original Sales Price: $179,416 
o Demonstrated Increased Costs of $12,285 
o Requested Sales Price $203,668 (increase of $24,252) 

 

HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Page 23of 23


	cover sheet BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING August 2021.pdf
	HLB August 2021 Board Meeting Packet no cov or nmbrs.pdf
	HLB regular meeting agenda 081221.pdf
	draft HLB presidents report 081221 gg and db final edits.pdf
	aug21 hlb packet no agenda no cover.pdf
	Minutes - HLB Meeting 06.10.2021 4836-2434-4303 1.pdf
	I. Call to Order and Roll Call
	II. Public Speakers
	III. Consideration and Adoption of Meeting Minutes
	a. May 13, 2021 Board Meeting

	IV. Chairman's Greeting:  Matt Zeis
	V. Committee Reports:
	a. Executive Committee:  Matt Zeis, Chair
	b. Finance Committee:  Laurie Vignaud, Chair
	1. Monthly Financial Report

	c. Partnership and Program Development Committee:  Courtney Johnson Rose, Chair
	d. Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition Committee:  Victor Mondragón, Chair
	e. Procurement and Oversight Committee:  Jesus DeAnda, Chair

	VI. President's Report:  Anne Gatling Haynes, CEO/President
	VII. Mayor's Office/Complete Communities Report:  Ex Officio Director Christa Stoneham
	VIII. Legislative Update:  Jeri Brooks and/or Joshua Sanders, Legislative Affairs Consultants
	IX. Board Action Items
	a. Presentation and Discussion Regarding Housing Affordability and Updated Program Guideline Requirements
	b. Presentation and Discussion Regarding Proposed HLB Programs for FY 2022
	c. Consideration and Possible Action to Adopt Proposed FY 2022 Budget
	d. Consideration and Possible Action to Accept Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition Committee and Staff Recommendation of Burghli Investments, LLC Contract Amendments for Maximum Sales Price Increase Requests under the HLB Builder Traditional Program
	e. Consideration and Possible Action to Accept Real Estate Acquisition and Disposition Committee and Staff Recommendation of LIZ Enterprises Contract Amendments for Maximum Sales Price Increase, Lot Split, and Change of Plans and Specifications under ...
	f. Consideration and Possible Action to Accept Real Estate and Development Committee and Staff Lot Selection Recommendation for the Sale of Property to Sunbeam Baptist Church Through the HLB Limited Alternative Land Use Program:  [Address – Neighborho...
	1. 0 Shotwell – Trinity Gardens – 0660250080791 – $18,055 – Sunbeam Baptist Church


	X. Executive Session
	a. Discussion Regarding the Value or Transfer of Real Property

	XI. Action Items from Executive Session.
	XII. Board Member Comments
	XIII. Adjournment

	aug21 hlb packet no agenda no cover.pdf
	BudgetvsActualsFiscalYear2021BAB-FY21PLDepartments (2).pdf
	BalanceSheet (2) (1).pdf
	ProfitandLoss (2).pdf
	draft HLB RBA - GG interim authority 081221.pdf
	HLB RBA - Sale Price Increases MHL Properties 082021 mtg.pdf






